
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, August 29, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   

III. Staff Report 

IV. Operational Updates 

A. Proposed Imported Water Purchases from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District and the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for Calendar Year 2018 [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 17-122 - Page 5 of 91] 

B. Proposed Purchase of a 2017 CAT 450F Backhoe [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-123 - 
Page 7 of 91] 

C. Consideration of a Trial Replacement of Ultrafiltration Membranes Filters at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124 - Page 12 of 91] 

D. Review of Updated Standard Specifications for Drinking Water, Recycled Water, and 
Sewer Facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-125 - Page 28 of 91] 

E. Project Status Update for the Slope Repair at Drinking Water Reservoir R-15.1 [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 17-126 - Page 29 of 91] 

F. Project Status Update for the Power Supply and Road Improvements at Drinking Water 
Reservoir R-18.4 [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-127 - Page 33 of 91] 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 1 of 91

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

V. Policy Issues 

A. Overview of Current Water Meter Installation Fees and Options Related to Amend the Fee 
Structure to Achieve Full Cost Recovery [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-128 - Page 39 
of 91] 

VI. Development Related Issues 

A. Overview of the Proposed Summerwind Development, Calimesa [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 17-129 - Page 44 of 91] 

VII. Administrative Issues 

A. Notice of Completion for the Construction of Replacement Pipelines on Date Avenue, 
Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street, Calvin Street, and Vista 
Lane - Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-130 - Page 47 of 91] 

B. Review of an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Agreement Between Yucaipa Valley 
Water District and Sensus USA [Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131 - Page 52 of 91] 

C. Overview of a Disposal Plan for Surplus Vehicles and Equipment [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 17-132 - Page 74 of 91] 

VIII. Director Comments 

IX. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel Existing Litigation Government Code, Section 54956.9(d) 
- Robinson Ranch vs Yucaipa Valley Water District; 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No. CIVDS 1712116 

 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Conference with Real Property negotiator(s) (Government Code 54956.8) 
Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Number:  301-201-20 
Agency Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Abraham Issa 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

 

C. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 

Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 0301-211-020 and 0301-201-030 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Mesa Verde Ventures LLC c/o Betek Corporation Under 
Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 
 

D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager, and Allison Edmisten, Chief 
Financial Officer 
Employee Organization: IBEW Local Union 1436-YVWD Employees Association 
 

X. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 2 of 91



 

Staff Report 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 3 of 91



 

 

Operational Updates 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 4 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-122 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Proposed Imported Water Purchases from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District and the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for Calendar Year 2018 

 
On November 18, 2002, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District adopted Resolution 
No. 888 which describes the rules, regulations, and rates for the sale and delivery of supplemental 
water.  The adopted water rates consist of a $108/AF energy charge and a $40/AF conveyance 
charge for a total base price of $148/AF.  The following chart illustrates the discounts and 
surcharges that apply to water purchases. 

 

 Criteria Payment Method 
Discount / 
Surcharge 

Water 
Rate 

T
ie

r 
I 

P
la

n
 A

h
e
a
d

 

Water ordered prior to 
December 31st for 
delivery in the 
following calendar 
year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/12th of 
the water ordered due at the 
end of each month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

15% Discount of 
base water rate 

$125.80/AF 

T
ie

r 
II

 

S
e
a

s
o

n
a
l 

S
to

ra
g

e
 

Water ordered for 
groundwater recharge 
prior to December 31st 
for delivery during 
January through May 
of the following year. 

Option 1 - Payment for 1/5th of 
the water is due at the end of 
each Tier II month for the base 
price. 

0% Discount of 
base water rate 

$148/AF 

Option 2 - Payment in full by 
January 31st for discounted 
rate. 

20% Discount of 
base water rate 

$118.40/AF 

T
ie

r 
II
I 

S
p

o
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 Water ordered at any 
time during the 
calendar year for 
delivery in the same 
calendar year. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. 

25% Surcharge 
of base water 

rate 
$185/AF 

O
u

ts
id

e
 

W
a
te

r 

R
a
te

s
 

Water purchased from 
SBVMWD for use 
outside of the 
boundary of 
SBVMWD. 

Payment method pursuant to 
Section 4.07 of the Rules and 
Regulations. Rate based on 
DWR Bulletin 132 Appendix B. 

- - $378.89/AF 

 

Overall, SBVMWD offers very competitive water rates for planning ahead and paying for the 
requested water delivery within the first month of the year.  However, there is no guarantee with 
respect to receiving water ordered and paid for at the beginning of the year.  It is possible that 
operational issues with the State Water Project and/or lack of rainfall in northern California can 
result in less water being delivered than paid for by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 5 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-122  Page 2 of 2 

Anticipated Water Delivery for 2018- San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 
For Calendar Year 2017, the Yucaipa Valley Water District placed two orders for imported water 
from San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District: 

• On July 20, 2016, the Board authorized the District staff to purchase 6,000 acre-feet of 
imported water for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 
[Director Memorandum No. 16-071]. 

• On March 7, 2017, the Board authorized the District staff to purchase an additional 1,000 
acre-feet of imported water for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility pus 6,000 acre-feet for recharge at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins 
[Director Memorandum No. 17-021]. 
 

Based on the quantity of imported water ordered last year, the District staff recommends the 
purchase of 7,000 acre-feet for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility for Calendar Year 2018.  At the current rate of $125.80 per acre foot, the total cost of the 
imported water from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District will be $880,600 [GL 
Account #02-10315]. 
 
 
Anticipated Water Delivery for 2018 - San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District will submit an order for 700 acre-feet of imported water from 
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for direct delivery to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water 
Filtration Facility.  Based on the policies of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the District staff 
is confident that the total amount of imported water needed for direct delivery and consumption in 
Calimesa will be delivered by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 
At the current rate of $309 per acre foot, the total cost of the imported water from the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency will be $216,300 [GL Account #02-10316]. 
 
 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Wholesale Water Service to Western Heights Mutual Water Co. 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District processes imported water at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility for the Western Heights Mutual Water Company.  Western Heights Mutual 
Water Company has indicated that they will likely request less water in Calendar Year 2018.  Once 
the imported water order is received, the quantity of water ordered by Western Heights Mutual 
Water Company will be included in the District’s imported water purchase with San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District but tracked separate from the District’s order for accounting 
purposes. 
 
 
Changing Conditions and Uncertainty 
 
The proposed water orders identified above are projections and maximum quantities expected to 
be ordered based on current summer demands and a variety of other issues.  If additional 
imported water is needed or made available, a separate memorandum will be presented for your 
consideration. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 6 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-123 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 

Subject: Proposed Purchase of a 2017 CAT 450F Backhoe 

 
The District staff continuously reviews the 
operating condition, cost, and maintenance 
requirements of fleet vehicles and equipment to 
evaluate the overall maintenance and 
replacement needs.  During the latest review, the 
District staff identified the need to replace the 
1989 CAT 426 backhoe (unit 260).  The Public 
Works Department uses backhoes for routine 
maintenance and repairs of the drinking water, 
recycled water, and sewer facilities.  
 
The District staff compared both John Deere and 
CAT models of backhoes.  Following the review, 
the District staff concluded that the CAT 450F 
backhoe was the most suitable and economical replacement.  The CAT 450F is larger and more 
powerful than our existing unit, and Tier 4 smog compliant without adding Diesel Exhaust Fluid 
(DEF).  The CAT 450F can be purchased for a sum not to exceed $154,000. 
 
Financial Consideration: 
Funding for this equipment will be equally divided between Depreciation Reserves of the Water 
Division [GL Account #02-10310], Sewer Division [GL Account #03-10310], and the Recycled 
Water Division [GL Account #04-10310]. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 7 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-123  Page 2 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 8 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-123  Page 3 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 9 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-123  Page 4 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 10 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-123  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 11 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-124 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of a Trial Replacement of Ultrafiltration Membranes Filters at the 
Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District is analyzing the potential replacement of microfiltration 
membranes at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.  Based on an initial review by 
Separation Processes, the District staff is evaluating the benefits of testing Scinor membranes to 
gain additional treatment with an ultrafiltration membrane versus the existing microfiltration 
membrane. 
 
A discussion about the membranes will be provided at the board workshop. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 12 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 2 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 13 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 3 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 14 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 4 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 15 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 5 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 16 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 6 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 17 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 7 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 18 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 8 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 19 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 9 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 20 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 10 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 21 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 11 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 22 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 12 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 23 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 13 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 24 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 14 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 25 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 15 of 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 26 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-124  Page 16 of 16 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 27 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-125 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Review of Updated Standard Specifications for Drinking Water, Recycled Water, 
and Sewer Facilities 

 
On March 16, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2016-13 related to standard 
specifications for drinking water, recycled water and sewer facilities. 
 
For the 2017 update, District staff is focusing on checking part numbers and material types for 
current availability as well as adding future Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) and smart 
manhole specifications in expectation of technological advances.  
 
Following the approval of the standard drawings, the District’s website will be updated to include 
the entire package of standard drawings as well as individual standards for use by consultants, 
engineers and contractors. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 28 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-126 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Project Status Update for the Slope Repair at Drinking Water Reservoir R-15.1 

 
District crews have been working to clean up the soil material that washed down the east facing 
slope at the drinking water reservoir R-15.1 located on Fir Avenue, East of Fremont Street in 
Yucaipa.   
 

 
 
The slope damage that occurred in this area is the result of a clogged drain that was filled with 
sediment from the sheet flow run-off that accumulates from the adjacent parcel.  The slope was 
originally engineered to control run-off with two concrete lined swales and a storm drain system 
that conveys the collected rain water away from the slopes to prevent erosion.  When the upper 
swale and drain filled with sediment, the run-off eroded the slope as the water traveled down to 
the pavement below, displacing a large amount of soil material.  District staff observed the issue 
during a rain event on January 23, 2017.  The cleanup effort has consisted of District staff 
removing the soil material on the pavement and in the drains.   
 
In addition to the repair of the slope, the District is considering implementing additional 
preventative solutions.  The improved design will include 125 linear-feet of gabions installed near 
the eastern property line where the natural drainage occurs.  The gabions will slow the run-off 
and collect the sediment before clogging the drains and swales.  The District is in the process of 
contracting the remaining work out in the interest of time and resources.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 29 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-126  Page 2 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 30 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-126  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 31 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-126  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 32 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-127 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Project Status Update for the Power Supply and Road Improvements at Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-18.4 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District is in the process of adding electrical service and improving the 
access road to the drinking water reservoir R-18.4 located off Toucan Court in Yucaipa.  The site 
needs reliable power to communicate with the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
system that manages the drinking water distribution system.  The current electrical demand for 
this site is supplied by a small solar panel and two deep cycle automotive style batteries.  The 
District only operates two other sites in this manner, R16.2 and R17.51/52.  The battery-powered 
sites can be problematic and require additional maintenance for consistent performance. 

 
 
The R-18.4 site is especially important to operate the future Automated Meter Infrastructure as its 
physical location provides the most complete signal coverage.  This scope of this project will 
include the installation of an electrical service line from the transformer on Toucan Court to the 
new panel at R18.4 that will be buried in the access road. The new service will supply the current 
and future power demands through a distribution panel mounted near the tank itself. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 33 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-127  Page 2 of 5 

 
 
The access road (pictured above) is used by the District to maintain the facility as well as a 
property owner of the adjacent parcel and will be base paved over the trench after the conduit is 
installed.  The final top coat slurry seal will be applied over the entire road surface once the all 
work has been completed.  The preliminary construction drawings are attached. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 34 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-127  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 35 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-127  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 36 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-127  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 37 of 91



 

 

Policy Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 38 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-128 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of Current Water Meter Installation Fees and Options Related to Amend 
the Fee Structure to Achieve Full Cost Recovery 

 
The District staff is in the process of analyzing various rates, fees and charges for water, sewer and 
recycled water operations.  One of the largest differentials between the actual cost of service and the 
revenue received is related to the installation of water meters for new development.  With the 
anticipated acceleration of new development, it is important that this fee is set properly so existing 
customers do not subsidize the cost of new development.   
 
The actual cost for installing water meters has increased over the past several years due to new 
regulations and initiatives implemented by the District.  These changes include: 
 

o Residential Fire Sprinkler Requirement – In 2011, the California Code of Regulations required 
increased meter sizes for automatic residential fire sprinklers. 

 
o Dual-Plumbed Residential Backflow Protection – The implementation of dual-plumbed homes 

throughout the District has an impact on the cost of service. 
 

o Automated Meter Infrastructure Technology – The installation of remote radio reading 
equipment will add to the cost of water meter installations. 
 
 

Existing Rate Schedule 
 

The Yucaipa Valley Water District Resolution No. 18-2011, Section 2.7 provides the current fee 
structure for the installation of water meters [Attached]: 

 

 
 
The following table illustrates the differential between the revenue received and the actual cost of 
various types of meter installations. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 39 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-128  Page 2 of 4 

Common Meter Installation Cost Analysis 
 

 
 
In the instance that a home is dual-plumbed, two water meter installations will be required thus 
incurring a larger cost differential.  The solution to reduce or eliminate the difference of the fee 
collected and the actual cost should take place before residential development increases.   
 

 
 

Type of Meter 

Installation

Current Fee 

Collected

Actual Cost with 

Updated Standards
Difference

3/4" Drinking Water Meter 

Install
$491 $166

3/4" Recycled Water Meter 

Install
$491 $166

1" Recycled Water Meter 

Install
$572 $197

1" Drinking Water Meter 

Install With Fire Sprinklers 
$914 $539

1" Drinking Water Meter 

Install with Fire Sprinklers on 

Dual Plumbed Residence 

$1,088 $713

$325

$375

264

146

15 8 7 6

71 85

230

189

242

590

535

617

442448

222

69
41

18

86

22
57

133

174176

62

FY
 1

9
9

1

FY
 1

9
9

2

FY
 1

9
9

3

FY
 1

9
9

4

FY
 1

9
9

5

FY
 1

9
9

6

FY
 1

9
9

7

FY
 1

9
9

8

FY
 1

9
9

9

FY
 2

0
0

0

FY
 2

0
0

1

FY
 2

0
0

2

FY
 2

0
0

3

FY
 2

0
0

4

FY
 2

0
0

5

FY
 2

0
0

6

FY
 2

0
0

7

FY
 2

0
0

8

FY
 2

0
0

9

FY
 2

0
1

0

FY
 2

0
1

1

FY
 2

0
1

2

FY
 2

0
1

3

FY
 2

0
1

4

FY
 2

0
1

5

FY
 2

0
1

6

FY
 2

0
1

7

Historical Water Facility Capacity Charges

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 40 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-128  Page 3 of 4 

The long-term average of new home construction is about 183 new dwellings per year.  Using an 
average of 183 new dwellings per year with a single drinking water meter the loss of revenue is 
approximately $130,000 each year with drinking water meters alone [183 x $713 = $130,479].  The 
addition of a recycled water meter will increase the loss by $36,000 [183 x $197 = $36,051], for an 
annual loss of over $165,000. 
 
The purpose of this workshop memorandum is to discuss the implementation of the fee adjustment.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 41 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-128  Page 4 of 4 

 

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

M
e

te
r 

In
s

ta
ll
a

ti
o

n

P
ro

p
o

e
d

 A
d

ju
s

te
d

 

F
e

e
 (

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
)

P
ro

p
o

e
d

 A
d

ju
s

te
d

 

F
e

e
 (

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
8

)

A
n

n
u

a
l 
F

e
e

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 

F
e

e
 2

0
1

8

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 

F
e

e
 2

0
1

9

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 

F
e

e
 2

0
2

0

3
/4

" 
D

ri
n
k
in

g
 W

a
te

r 
M

e
te

r 

In
s
ta

ll
$
4
9
0

$
4
9
0

$
5
5

$
3
8
0

$
4
3
5

$
4
9
0

3
/4

" 
R

e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
M

e
te

r 

In
s
ta

ll
$
4
9
0

$
4
9
0

$
5
5

$
3
8
0

$
4
3
5

$
4
9
0

1
" 

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
M

e
te

r 

In
s
ta

ll
$
5
7
0

$
5
7
0

$
6
6

$
4
4
0

$
5
0
5

$
5
7
0

1
" 

D
ri
n
k
in

g
 W

a
te

r 
M

e
te

r 

In
s
ta

ll 
W

it
h
 F

ir
e
 S

p
ri
n
k
le

rs
 

$
9
1
0

$
9
1
0

$
1
8
0

$
5
5
5

$
7
3
4

$
9
1
0

1
" 

D
ri
n
k
in

g
 W

a
te

r 
M

e
te

r 

In
s
ta

ll 
w

it
h
 F

ir
e
 S

p
ri
n
k
le

rs
 o

n
 

D
u
a
l 
P

lu
m

b
e
d
 R

e
s
id

e
n
c
e
 

$
1
,0

8
5

$
1
,0

8
5

$
2
3
8

$
6
1
0

$
8
4
5

$
1
,0

8
5

O
p

ti
o

n
 3

F
e
e
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 42 of 91



 

 

Development Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 43 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-129 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of the Proposed Summerwind Development, Calimesa 

 
The District staff has been working together with representatives from Argent Management for 
the development of the Summerwind Project in Calimesa, California.  Based on recent activity at 
the project site, the District staff requested a presentation about the development project for the 
benefit of the Board of Directors and members of the public. 
 
Information about this project will be provided by representatives of Argent Management. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 44 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-129  Page 2 of 2 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 45 of 91



 

 

Administrative Issues 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 46 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-130 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Notice of Completion for the Construction of Replacement Pipelines on Date 
Avenue, Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street, Calvin 
Street, and Vista Lane - Yucaipa 

 
On April 4, 2017, the Board of Directors awarded a construction project to Borden Excavating for 
the construction of replacement pipelines on Date Avenue, Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox 
Street, Verona Street, Calvin Street, and Vista Lane Replacement Pipelines [Director 
Memorandum No.  17-032].  The project is now complete and the construction of approximately 
4,600+ linear feet of 8-inch mortar lined ductile iron pipe, including various laterals, valves and 
appurtenances are installed.   
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 47 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-130  Page 2 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 48 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-130  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 49 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-130  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 50 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-130  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 51 of 91



 

Workshop Memorandum 17-131 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Review of an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Agreement Between 
Yucaipa Valley Water District and Sensus USA 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District is preparing to implement a districtwide Automated Meter 
Infrastructure (AMI) system.  The major components of an Automated Meter Infrastructure include 
the smart meter with transceiver (Smart Point), the tower gateway base stations (TGB), and the 
regional network interface (RNI).  Utilizing these components, water meter data is conveyed via 
radio frequency and cellular communication back to the database (RNI) where the information is 
used for billing and consumption reports.  The advantages of transmitting the customer meter 
data with an Automated Meter Infrastructure are far reaching and include hourly meter reads, 
detailed water consumption analysis, leak detection and backflow alarms, as well as the 
elimination of manual meter reading.   
 
During a Regular Board Meeting on February 7, 2017, Director Memorandum 17-017 was 
approved with the motion outlined below. 
 

 
 

The District has selected Sensus Flexnet as the network service provider for the implementation 
of the Automated Meter Infrastructure.  The local Sensus dealer is Aqua Metric Sales Company, 
will assist in the configuration of the equipment, set up of the database and billing integration, and 
provide training for the systems. 
  

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba and discussion by board 
members, Director Lonni Granlund moved and Director Bruce Granlund seconded a motion to 
authorize District staff to proceed with the following: 

1. Implement the AMI Project funded from water depreciation reserves and possible grant 
funds using Sensus as the primary provider of the FlexNet communication system. 

2. Prepare a resolution setting and automatically adjusting the cost as a time and material 
expense related to the installation of fully integrated AMI water meters for all new 
installations. 

3. Plan for Capital Improvement Project budget funding each year and implementation of a 
meter replacement program. 

4. Include in a future financial rate study the proposed annual increase of $0.25 for ten years 
to provide funding for the replacement and sustainability of the overall AMI system. 

 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 

Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 52 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 2 of 22 

The Distrcit currently has approximatly 5,200 Sensus meters installed with a total number of 
meters in the system of 12,900 leaving 7,700 meters in need of upgrading. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Service/Equipment Quanty Price Discount Total

M-400 BaseStation 3 $35,000.00 $21,000.00 $84,000

520-M SmartPoint 5,200 $150.00 $780,000

Saas Set Up Fee 1 $7,725.00 $7,725

Analytic Set Up Fee 1 $5,625.00 $5,625

Trainning 1 $6,000.00 $6,000

AMI Meter Lid 5,200 $50.00 $260,000

Internet Modem 3 $775.00 $2,325

Total $1,145,675

1" iPearl Meter 635 $175.00 $111,125

3/4" iPearl Meter 7,065 $120.00 $847,800

520-M SmartPoint 7,700 $150.00 $1,155,000

AMI Meter Lid 7,700 $50.00 $385,000

Total $2,498,925

Software Annual Fee 1 $26,225.00 $26,225

BaseStation Maint. Fee 1 $3,000.00 $3,000

Modem Fee* 3 $720.00 Per Year $2,160

Total $31,385

* Internet Modem Fee based on 3 towers at $20/month

Cost to Auto-Read Existing 5,000 Smart Meters 

Cost to Upgrade Remaining 7,700 Meters to Auto-Read 

Annual Cost

Cost to Auto 

Read Existing 

5,200 Smart 

Meters 

Cost to Upgrade 

Remaining 7,700 

Meters 

Total Auto Read 

12,900 Meters
Annual Cost

$1,145,675 $2,498,925 $3,644,600 $31,385

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 53 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 3 of 22 

The quote from Aqua Metric and the AMI contact are attached.  The role of Aqua Metric will be to 
provide customer service to the District for the Sensus products.  Aqua Metric will provide trainning 
for the new Flex-Net software and database management.  They will install and set up the three 
base stations and ensure they function with the transcievers that the Distrcit installs.  Aqua Metric 
will integrate the District’s billing sofware with the Sensus Flex-Net software to generate the 
automated downloading of the meter reads into the billing system.  The Sensus Flex-Net system 
will receive hourly reads from each meter in the system providing leak detection and backflow 
alarms as well as detailed consumption reports. 
 
The Sensus AMI Agreement outlines the details of the liscensed spectrum, the software, 
equipment, and services provided. 
 
The District is reviewing the AMI agreement and preparing related systems for the upgrade.  The 
existing billing system will work with the Sensus Flex-Net software but is in need of an update.  
Once the billing system update is complete, the integration of the Sensus software will take place. 
 
Another improvement in preperation for AMI is the installation of the electical service at the R-
18.4 reservoir site.  The R-18.4 site is a significant antenna location because of its physical 
location and ability to propogate a robust RF signal.  District staff is also updating the standard 
design drawings in anticipation of AMI to include the required transciever (Smartpoint).  
 
 Lastly, the fee that is associated with meter installations must be revised and updated with current 
costs and new equipment for AMI.  All of these considerations are to improve the quality of service 
the District can provide with the use of improved technology.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 54 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 4 of 22 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 55 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 5 of 22 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 56 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 6 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 57 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 7 of 22 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 58 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 8 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 59 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 9 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 60 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 10 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 61 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 11 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 62 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 12 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 63 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 13 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 64 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 14 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 65 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 15 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 66 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 16 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 67 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 17 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 68 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 18 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 69 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 19 of 22 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 70 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 20 of 22 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 71 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 21 of 22 

 

**Spectrum Lease Agreement**  

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

Is there any additional cost associated with the spectrum lease? 

No.  There is no additional cost to you for the spectrum lease.  Any amount allocated to the 

spectrum lease is paid from the ongoing support already being paid by you.      

 

Do I have to complete this spectrum lease agreement annually? 

No.  The spectrum lease agreement needs completion one time only.  So long as the spectrum is 

being utilized for Sensus equipment, Sensus will renew the lease indefinitely on your behalf. 

 

When does the lease expire?      

There is no definitive expiration on your end.  Your lease will last as long as Sensus’ license does 

with the FCC, provided you are still using it for Sensus equipment   

 

What is a Customer FRN? 

A Customer FRN is an FCC Registration Number.  This field can be left blank if it is unknown.  

An FRN will be issued by the FCC when we file on your behalf for a spectrum manager lease 

using your Tax ID. 

 

Which Tax ID should I provide?  

The FCC needs the nine digit FEIN (Federal Employers Identification Number) to issue an FRN.  

A tax exempt number cannot be used. 

 

What does “Name of Real Party in Interest” on the form mean? 

A “Real Party in Interest” means the legal entity ultimately responsible for your operations.  In 

most cases, there is no other “Real Party in Interest,” in which case the box is left blank.  Some 

examples, however, include a parent company or principle shareholder of the leasing party.   

 

Do I need to provide Additional Contact Information (Section 2)?  

Not necessarily.  Additional contact information is only applicable if it differs from Section 1.  If 

not applicable, this section may be left blank. 

 

What is FCC Form 602 and how do I know if there is an FCC Form 602 on file? 

FCC Form 602 is ownership disclosure information for wireless telecommunications services.  

Unless you know you have previously filed a Form 602, you can safely assume there is not one on 

file.  The ownership disclosure information will be collected in the body of the spectrum lease 

agreement and Sensus will file the Form 602 on your behalf. 

 

Who should be designated as the Individual Contact for FCC matters?    

The individual contact should be someone who can answer questions from the FCC about the use 

of the spectrum.  The Director of Public Works or similar person is typically the most appropriate. 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 72 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-131  Page 22 of 22 

What is needed in the Ownership Disclosure Information Section? 

The names of your governing body need to be listed (i.e. each member of your board, council, 

committee or other governing body).  Each member needs to be marked yes or no in the “US 

Citizen?” column.   It is atypical, however if any member has ownership interests or operational 

control exceeding 10% in any entity regulated by the FCC, the box should be marked yes and an 

explanation must be attached defining the percentage of ownership.  If there are no ownership 

interests exceeding 10% needing to be disclosed, the boxes should be marked no.  Individual 

signatures of governing members are not required. 

 

If we are not a government entity, do we need to complete the ownership disclosure section? 

Yes.  Every entity must complete the ownership disclosure section.  You may cross out the existing 

designation and write the appropriate administration of each member (ie: Commission, Council, 

Superintendent, Manager, etc.). 

 

Do I need to mail a hard copy?    

No.  Scanned or faxed agreements are perfectly acceptable and preferred for efficiency. Scanned 

agreements should be emailed to shannon.hearns@sensus.com or faxed to Shannon Hearns at 866-

670-8821. 

 

Where do I mail a hard copy requesting full execution and return?  

Please mail to the attention of Shannon Hearns at Sensus USA, 8601 Six Forks Rd., Suite 700, 

Raleigh, NC 27615. 

 

Who can I contact if I need help completing the forms?  

Shannon Hearns is more than happy to answer questions and assist in completing the forms.  She 

can be reached via phone at 702 353 9220 or email shannon.hearns@sensus.com.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 73 of 91

mailto:shannon.hearns@sensus.com


 

Workshop Memorandum 17-132 

Date: August 29, 2017 

From: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst 

Subject: Overview of a Disposal Plan for Surplus Vehicles and Equipment 

 
The District staff has been reviewing concepts for eliminating old, unused equipment, and 
vehicles.  The District staff utilized Ken Porter Auctions from Carson California to assist in this 
effort and is satisfied with the results from the previous auction where five vehicles were sold for 
a total of $16,755 received by the District after fees and transportation costs were deducted. 
 
The attached agreement outlines the details for the sale of additional vehicles and equipment.  In 
summary, the vehicles will be picked up and transported to the auction yard in Carson where the 
vehicles will be included in an upcoming sale.  Ken Porter Auctions will take a 5% commission, 
yielding the remaining 95% of the sale price to the District.  This agreement will remain in effect 
for future use as the need arises.   
 
The following vehicles and equipment are recommended to be considered surplus and sold as 
part of the proposed contract: 

• Unit 39 – 1988 Ford F-800 Crane Truck 

• Unit 16 – 1989 Chevrolet 2 Ton Dump Truck 

• Unit 05 – 1998 Ford F-250 Single Cab Pick-Up Truck 

• Unit 23 – 1988 Ford F-150 Single Cab Pick-Up Truck 

• Unit 359 – 1990 Zieman Tandem Axle Trailer 

• Unit 272 – Broderson Hydro-Hammer Trench Compactor 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 74 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 2 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 75 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 3 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 76 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 4 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 77 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 5 of 8 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 78 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 6 of 8 

Unit 39 – 1988 Ford F-800 Crane Truck 

 
 

Unit 16 – 1989 Chevrolet 2 Ton Dump Truck 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 79 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 7 of 8 

 
Unit 5 – 1998 Ford F-250 Single Cab Pick-Up Truck 

 
 

Unit 23 – 1988 Ford F-150 Single Cab Pick-Up Truck 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 80 of 91



Workshop Memorandum No. 17-132  Page 8 of 8 

Unit 359 – 1990 Zieman Tandem Axle Trailer 
 

 
 

Unit 272 – Broderson Hydro-Hammer Trench Compactor 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 81 of 91



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 82 of 91



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 83 of 91



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

62 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 
Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 

13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 84 of 91



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 85 of 91



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 86 of 91



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 87 of 91



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 88 of 91



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 89 of 91



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 90 of 91



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - August 29, 2017 - Page 91 of 91


